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PERRY-SMITH c1»

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Sacramento City Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial statements as
listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit inciudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sacramento City
Unified School District as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 11, 2005 on our consideration of Sacramente City Unified School District's
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

AD0 CAPITGL MALL, SUITE 1200, SACRAMERTO, ¢a 93814
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Continued)

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial
statements. The accompanying financial and statistical information listed in the Table of
Contents, including the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards, which is required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of Sacramento City Unified School District. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the

basic financial statements taken as a whole.
%7, St (LR

Sacramento, California
November 11, 2005



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is management’s overall view of the
District’s financial condition, and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal
issues with the board and the public. Accounting rules require this discussion and
analysis.

Financial Reports

The audit report consists of a series of financial reports. The Statement of Net Assets
and Statement of Activities report the District-wide financial condition and activities of the
District taken as a whole. These two financial statements start on page 9. The
individual fund statements, which focus on reporting the District’s operations in more
detail, begin on page 11.

District-wide Financial Condition

The Statement of Net Assets is a District-wide financial statement that reports ali that the
District owns (assets) and owes (liabilities). Fiscal year 2001-2002 was the first year
the District accounted for the value of fixed assets and included these values as part of
financial statements. We display the book value of all District assets including buildings,
land and equipment and related depreciation in this financial statement. The table below
summarizes the value of District assets for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Beginning Net Assets $ 09,522,849
Change $ 19,220,905
Ending Nef Assets $ 118,743,754

Land is accounted for at purchase cost, not market value, and is not depreciated. Many
of our school sites have low values for today’s market because the District acquired the
land many decades ago. School buildings are valued at their historical construction cost
less depreciation.

Comparative financial information as of June 30, from the Statement of Net Assets is
summarized in the following table:

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004

Capital Assets $ 374,791,956 $ 307,221,698
Other Assets $ 195,975,766 $ 204,604,153
Total Assets $ 571,767,722 $ 511,825,851




June 30, 2005

June 30, 2004

Current and Other Liabilities $ 88,790,743 $ 89,455,273

Long-Term Liabilities $ 364,233,225 $ 322,847,729
Total Liabilities $ 453,023,988 $ 412,303,002

Net Assets Invested in Capital | § 40,262,647 $ 42,461,772

Assets

Restricted Net Assets 5 75,901,889 $ 103,929,556

Unrestricted Net Assets $ 3,579,218 $ (46,868,479)

Total Net Assets

$ 118,743,754

$ 99,522,849

Total net assets increased due to an increase in capital assets for numerous capital
improvement and construction projects.

The statement of activities is a district-wide financial statement that reports the District's
cost of instruction and other District activities, and the resources that fund individual and
general activities of the District. Comparative financial information for the year ended
June 30 is presented in the following table:

June 30, 2005 | June 30, 2004
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
tnstruction $274,180,868 | $262,803,438
Instruction-Related Services 62,401,116 59,985,259
Pupil Services 34,878,737 35,783,724
General Administration 29,768,811 31,765,794
Plant Services 46,628,897 45,626,371
Interest on Long-Term Debt 14,890,965 12,589,243
All Other Expenses and Cutgo 9,077,102 9,470,104
Total Governmental Activity Expenses 471,826,496 | 458,023,933
Business Type Activities:
Food Services 14,720,987 14,917,527
All Other Business Type Aclivities 1,292,001 1,723,425
Total Business Type Activity Expenses 16,012,988 16,640,952
Revenues
Charges For Services 3,678,011 3,571,271
Operating Grants and Contributions 169,565,907 160,025,577
Capital Grants and Contributions 32,411,135 ---
Taxes Levied for General Purposes 61,274,135 85,099,842
Taxes Levied for Debt and Special Purposes 15,513,833 22,147,181
Urrestricted Federal and State Aid 203,892 402 172,612,421
Interest and Investment Earnings 5,444 601 3,230,366
interagency Revenues 2,480,621 2,797,350
Miscellaneous 12,799,744 11,630,080
Total Revenues 507,060,389 461,064,088
Change in Net Assets $ 19,220,905 | § 13,600,797




Sacramento City Unified School District continued to maintain its sound financial
condition. District wide operations have been stable, with governmental activity
expenses increasing slightly primarily due to increases in employee benefit costs
including workers compensation. Business type activity revenue and expenses
remained relatively stable while total governmental revenues increased.

General Fund Financial and Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund accounts for the primary operations of the District. The District's
initial budget is adopted by July 1. Over the course of the year, the District’s budget is
revised several times to take into account revised and new categorical funding
appropriations and related expenditures, and to update budgets for prior year carry over
amounts. The budget may also be revised to reflect mid-year changes to the State
budget which affect District funding. The following table summarizes general fund
budget to actual information for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Adopted Year End

Budget Budget Actual
Total Revenues $349,570,019 | $403,068,139 $383,478,608
Total Expenditures $328,095,910 | $418,085,493 $386,285,875
Total Other $ 3,682,435 | § 1,046,407 $ 4,983,946
Sources/(Uses)

The actual net increase to the total revenue budget was $53,498,120 due to current year
budgets for categorical funds, which are budgeted as grant award documents are
received. Additionally, the budgets for prior year unspent restricted and unrestricted
program funds (carry over) are appropriated mid-year.

The actual net increase {o the total expenditure budget was $89,989,583, due to
revisions to set up expenditures related to categorical program funds which are
budgeted after July 1 as grant award documents are received.

The actual net change to the total other financing sources/uses budget changed by
$2,636,028 due primarily to dependent charter school service transfers,

Actual revenues were $19,589,531 or 4.8%, below year end budget due mostly to
unspent and unearned categorical revenue. Actual expenditures were $31,799,618, or
7.6%, below year end budget due to unspent categorical revenue and unspent school
site program revenue carryover.



The following table summarizes the General Fund operational fund financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Total Revenue $ 383,478,608
Total Expenditures (386,285,875)
Other Financing Sources & Uses 4,983,946
Net Change $ 2,176,679

General Fund ending balance increased due to unspent categorical program and one
time carry over funds. This sound financial condition is a result of good fiscal
management by staff — evident in careful budget management and compliance
oversight. Through the District’s future efforts of improving attendance rates it will
pravide additional revenue maximization. Future financial performance is dependent on
management’s ability to continue to control expenses and maintain revenue levels. As
evidenced in previous year's budget reductions, the Board has been proactive in making
any necessary budget adjustments to maintain District fiscal integrity.

Capital Projects
The District invested $81,271,038 in modermization and new construction of school sites
from the following combined sources:

Measure E $ 12,318,206
Measure | 44,406,916
State school bond funds 20,456,687
Certificates of participation & other local sources 4,089,229

Total: $ 81,271,038

Of this amount, approximately $80 million represents capitalized projects. Significant
modernization and construction projects are scheduled to continue for several years as
we update our existing facilities, complete construction on the new Health Professions
High School as well as facilities for small learning community high schools.

District Indebtedness

As of 6/30/06 the District has outstanding $364,233,225 of long-term liabilities.  Of this
amount, $258,095,000 is General Obligation Bonds backed by property tax increases
voted on by District residents in 1999 and 2002, and $4,875,000 is a special Tax Bond,
also backed by property tax increases voted on by residents.

Financial Issues

Per Pupil Funding

Over the last several years the State of California has experienced severe budget crises,
causing fluctuations in available revenues. The table below shows a five year trend in
state school funding:




Change in Per Pupil Funding
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Meanwhile, the District’s average daily aftendance decreased by 1,580 over the prior

year. This was primarily due to enroliment decline and growth in charter schoois in our
district. The District’s enroliment decline is comparable to the enroliment decline being
experienced state-wide. ADA for the District is projected to continue to decline in 05/06
although not as significantly as the previous year.

Heaith Care Cost Trends

District-Wide Health Care costs have been growing dramatically and continue to do so in
this budget year. The graph below shows the trends:

Trends in District-Wide Health Care Costs
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Health care cost
increases

The District provides lifetime health benefits to all retired teachers and certain other
employees who meet predetermined criteria. The annual actual payments for retiree
benefits are included in the District-wide health care costs. The District obtains an
actuarial report every three years to determine the unfunded future liability for lifetime
benefits. An updated actuarial report is in the process of being finalized. The actuarially
determined liability is not accrued or included in the above chart. This liability has
increased 133% from the last actuary report as follows:

July 1999 Liability

$148.2 Million

July 2002 Liability

$345.5 Million

Three Year Increase

$197.3 Million




Categorical Funding

As school revenues increased during the boom times of the late 1990’s, much of the
funds came to schools with strings attached. As we continue during constrained
economic times, we find these many complex program requirements make it difficult to
maintain our basic programs. The State is making efforts to provide some flexibility in
these programs and could this help us withstand economic and enroliment downturns.

As health care costs rise and categorical programs take a larger share of state revenue,
district management must continue to closely monitor the District’s limited financial
resources.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial information,
contact the Chief Financial Officer at (916) 643-9055.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2005

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2) $ 136,763822 § 1,831,359 § 138,695,181
Accounts receivable 46,741,454 4,251,791 50,993,245
Prepaid expenditures 3,825,852 3,825,852
Due from other funds {Note 3) 3,034,430 3,034,430
Stores inventory 343,435 83,623 427,058
Capital assets, net of accumutated
depreciation (Note 4) 374669478 122,478 374,791,956
Total assets 565378471 §,389.251 571,767,722
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 32,032,702 374,017 32,406,719
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses {Note 5} 17,075,183 17,075,153
TRANS payable {Note 2) 26,700,000 26,700,000
Deferred compensation 3,968,261 3,968,261
Deferred revenue 5,606,180 5,606,180
Due to other funds {Note 3) 3,034,430 3,034,430
Long-term liabilities (Note 6):
Due within one year 16,331,392 6,123 16,337,515
Due after one year 347 886,783 8.927 347.895.710
Total liabiiities 449 600471 3,423,497 453.023.968
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 40,155,219 107,428 40,262,647
Restricted (Note 7) 73,043,563 2,858,326 75,801,889
Unrestricted 2579218 2,579,218
Total net assets $ 115778000 % 2965754 § 118743754

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in County Treasury, restricted
for repayment of Tax and Revenue
Anticipation Notes {TRANs)
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash in revolving fund
Cash awaiting deposit
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Deferred compensation
Accounts receivable:
Federal government
State government
Local government and other
Prepaid expenditures
Due from other funds
Stores inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
TRANs payable
Deferred compensation
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Totai liabilities
Fund balances

Total fiahilities and fund balances

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2005

All Total
General Building Non-Major Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 4065643 $ 45863044 F 16,746,593 § 66675280
26,700,000 26,700,000
1,303,758 1,303,758
225,000 225,000
977,520 134,733 1,112,253
23,539,837 1,846,961 25,386,898
3,968,261 3,968,261
6,121,614 4,557 542 10,679,156
10,574,708 1,892,741 12,467,445
16,615,703 334,548 3,321,163 20,271,415
97,894 27,894
11,682,996 160,583 7,840,031 19,683,610
343435 343435
$ 81372774 § 71201872 $ 36330764 § 1880914410
$ 15144263 § 11650568 § 4479606 3 31274467
26,700,000 26,700,000
3,968,261 3,968,261
4,825,121 781,059 5,606,180
8.587.423 1.787.700 6,388,158 16.763.279
59,225,088 13,438,268 11,648,821 84,312,187
22147676 57.763.604 24,690,943 104,802,223
$ B1372774 § 71201872 § 36339764 $ 188914410

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTQ CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET -
TO THE STATEMENT GF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2005

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
assets in governmental funds. The cost of the assels
is $618,787,042 and the accumulated depreciation is
$245,117,564 (Note 4).

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2005
consisted of {Note 6):

Special Tax Bonds

State School Building Aid Loan
General Obligation Bonds
Certificates of Participation
Capitalized ease obiigations
Compensated absences

fnternal service funds are used to conduct certain activities
for which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-
recovery hasis. Net liabilities of the Self-Insurance Fund are:

In the governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is not
recognized untit the period in which it matures and is paid. In
the government-wide statermnent of activities, it is recognized in
the period that it is incurred.

Costs associated with the issuance of long-term liahilities are
not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
assets in governmentat funds.

Total net assets - governmental activities

$ 104,602,223

374,669,478

$  (4,875,000)
(2,438)
(258,095,000)
(94,795,000}
(289,196)

(6,161,541)
(364,218,175)

{2,493,879)

(509,505)

3,727,958

$ 115.778.000

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of these financial statements.,

12



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:
Revenue limi sources:
State apportionment
Local sources

Tota! revenue limit

Federal sources
Other State sources
Qther local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contract services and operating
expenditures

Capital outlay

Cther outgo

Debt service:
Principal refirement
Interest

Total expenditures

{Deficiency) excess of revenues
{under} over expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from the issuance of
General Obligation Bonds
Total other financing sources (Uses)
Change in fund balances
Fund batances, July 1, 2004

Fund balances, Jung 30, 2005

All Total
General Buiiding Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
§ 171,490,751 $ 18248714 3 189,739.465
51,045.194 61,045,194
232.535 945 18,248,714 250,784 659
59,344 239 $ 129,508 14,565,634 74,043,379
81,016,524 42,757,191 123,773,715
10.581.800 2830 357 28,723,654 41.935.811
383.478.608 2,759,863 104,299.193 490.537 664
171,615,208 19,434,327 191,049,536
56,837,960 466,399 9,362,644 66,667,003
80,745,049 123,839 11,558,115 02,429,003
20,524,734 2,462,232 2,505,151 25,492,117
49,735,063 4,695,360 4,388,854 58,819,277
1,183,706 75,012,290 5,661,801 82,157 597
5,534,590 5,534,580
83,253 2,110,000 11,752,566 13,055,819
15,411 2923603 11.972.038 14,811,052
386,285 875 87,783,823 76,936,296 551015904
(2.807.267) {85.033.960) 27.362 897 {60.478.330)
5,324,830 30,223,145 2,488,131 38,036,106
(340.,884) {1.500,000) {34,520,718) (36,361,502)
55.600.000 55,000,000
4,983,944 83723145 (32,032 587} 58,674 504
2,176,679 {1,310,815) (4,669,690) {3.803,826)
19,970,997 59074419 29360633 108,406,049

The accompanying notes are an integral

13

part of these financial statements.

$ 22147676 $ 57763604 § 24690943 S 104602223



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (3,803,828}

Amounts reperted for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the
governmentat funds, but increases capital assets in
the statement of net assets {Note 4), $ 82,157,597

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not
recorded in the governmental funds (Note 4). {14,542,795)

Issuance of long-term liabilities is an other financing source
in the governmental funds, but increases the long-term
tabilities in the statement of net assets (Note 6). (55,000,000}

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an expend-
iture in the governmental funds, but decreases the long-
term liabilities in the statement of net assets (Note 6), 13,955,819

Issuance costs and discounts related to the issuance of
long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but increases the assels in the statement of net
asseis. 463,825

In governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized
in the period that it is incurred. 20,087

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities
for which costs are charged to other funds on a fuil cost
recavery basis. Net loss for the Self-Insurance Fund was; (3,604,586)

in the statement of activities, expenses related to compen-
sated absences are measured by the amounis earned
during the year. In the governmental funds, expenditures
are measured by the amount of financial resources used

{Note 6). (346,928) 23,103,119
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 19299293

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL

MAJOR FUND - GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Budget Variance

Revenues:
Revenue fimit sources:
State apportionment

Original

Final

Actual

Favorable

{Unfavorable)

$ 152,444,903

$ 152444903 § 171,480,751

$

19,045,848

L.ocal sources 83,355 291 84,394 483 61.045.194 (23,349 289)
Total revenue fimit 235,800,194 236,839 388 232535945 (4.303.441)
Federal sources 42 426,798 73,642,827 59,344,239 (14,298 588)
Other State sources 65,125,356 81,620,698 81,016,524 (604,174)
Other local sources 68,217,671 10,966,228 10,581.900 {383.328)
Total revenues 349.570.019 403.068.139 383478 608 {18.589.531)
Expenditures:
Certificated salaries 157,985,038 173,406,383 171,615,208 1,791,174
Classified salaries 47,841,789 57,469,766 56,837,980 631,806
Employee benefits 74,922,321 82,823,120 80,745,949 2077171
Books and supplies 10,794,600 48,528,198 20,524,734 28,003,464
Contract services and operating
expenditures 28,813,461 49,988,869 49,735,063 253,806
Capital outlay 255,883 1,284,573 1,183,706 110,867
Other outgo 7,357,838 4,574,584 5,534,590 {(960,006)
Debt service:
Principal retirement 125,000 93,253 {93,253)
Interest 15411 {16411
Total expenditures 328 095 910 418 085 493 386,285,875 31,799,618
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures 21,474,109 (15.017,354) {2,807 267) 12,210,087
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in 3,061,488 1,325,460 5,324,830 3,899,370
Operating transfers out {279,053} (279.053) {340.884) {61.831)
Totat other financing sources 3.682.435 1,046,407 4.083 948 3,937,530
Change in fund balance 25,156,544 (13,970,847) 2,176,679 16,147,626
Fund batance, July 1, 2004 19,870,897 19,970,997 19,970,997

Fund balance, June 30, 2005 3 451427541 § 6000050 § 22147676 $ 16147626

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements,
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET LIABILITIES - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND

June 30, 2005

ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury $ 10,892,371
Revolving cash fund 500,000

Accounts receivable;
Local government and other 3,280,511
Due from other funds 587.996
Total assets 15,260,878

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 91,667
Due to other funds 588,037
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 17.075.153
Total liabilities 17,754,857

NET LIABILITIES

Net liabilities $ (2,493979)

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CiTY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN
FUND NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) - PROPRIETARY FUND

SELF-INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating revenues;
Self-insurance premiums

Operating expenses:
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contract services

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Non-operating income:
Interest income

Non-operating expense:
Transfers to other funds

Change in net assets {liabilities)
Total net assets, July 1, 2004

Total net liabilities, June 30, 2005

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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$ 16,056,232

39,685
21,165
133,675
19,094,361

19.288.886
(3,232,654)

216,064

(587,996)
(3,604,586)

1,110,607

$ (2493979)



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from self-insurance premiums $ 14,610,006
Cash paid for employee benefits (13,694,835)
Cash paid for other expenses {999.024)

Net cash used in operating activities (83.763)

Cash flows provided by investing activities:
Interest income received

137,209

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 53,446
Cash and cash equivalenis, July 1, 2004 11.338.925
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2005 $ 11,392,371
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Operating loss $. {3.232.654)
Adjustments to reconcile operating foss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Increase in:
Accounis receivable (1,446,136)
Amount due from other funds (672,395)
Increase (decrease) in:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 5,399,526
Accounts payable {190,763)

Armount due to other funds
Total adjustments

Net cash used in operating activilies

58.659

—3.148.891

> {83.763)

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND

CAFETERIA FUND

June 30, 2005

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash awaiting deposit
Cash in revolving fund
Accounts receivable:
Federal government
State government
Local government and other
Due from other funds
Stores inventory
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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$ 1,902,972
26,387
2,000

3,885,835
245,778
120,178

73,620
83,623

122.478

6,462,871

374,017
3,108,050

15,060

3497117

107,428
2,858 326

$ 2965754



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN
FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND

CAFETERIA FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating revenues:
Food service sales
Other local revenues
Child Nutrition Programs:
Federal
State

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Contract services and operating expenses
Food and supplies expenses
Totai operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating income:
interest income

Non-operating expense:
Transfers fo other funds

Change in net assets
Net assets, July 1, 2004

Net assets, June 30, 2005

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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$ 1,791,966
135,306

13,197,715

778,721

15.803.708

5,956,705
2,754,667
51,082
6,164,023
14926477

977,231
30,889

{1.086,508)
{78,388)

3.044 142

$ 2965754



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
CAFETERIA FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from food sales
Cash received from Child Nutrition Programs
Cash paid for operating expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
interest income received

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash paid for capital assets

increase in cash
Cash balance, July 1, 2004

Cash balance, June 30, 2005

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Inventory

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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$ 13,576,496
1,852,087

(14.789,256)
£39.327

30,889

(32,938)
637,278

1.294.081

$ 1931359

$ 977,231

77,482
(475,125)

9,279
{10,437}

98,828
(37,931)

(337.904)
$ 639,327



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2005

ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury (Note 2) $ (2,092,075)
Cash on hand and in banks {(Note 2) 2,067,205
Accounts receivable:

L.ocal government and other 3,712,869
Due from other funds (Note 3) 157,063
Stores inventory 74,048
Capital assets 12877

Total assets 3,932,085
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 122,072

Due to other funds {Note 3) 42,923

Due to student groups 1.873.841

Total liabilities 2.038.836
NET ASSETS

Restricted (Note 7) $ 1893249

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOQOIL. DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Revenues:
Other local sources

Expenditures:
Employee benefits (Note 9)
Confract services and operating
expenditures
Total expenditures
Change in net assetls
Net assets, July 1, 2004

Net assets, June 30, 2005

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Retiree
Benefits Scholarship
Trust Trust Total
$ 14,603,129 $ 3B 3 14,803.165
13,238,285 13,238,285
9.673 9.673
13,238,285 9.673 13,247,968
1,364,834 (9,637) 1,355,197
309,455 228 597 538,052
3 1674289 % 218,980 3% 1,893,249

The accompanying notes are an integrai

part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sacramento City Unified School District (the "District™} accounts for its financial
fransactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the California
Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The accounting
policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The following is a summary of the more significant
policies:

Reporting Entity

The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance
responsibilities over all activities related to public school education in the District. The
Board is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board members have decision-
making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The District and Sacramento Schools Education Facilities Financing Corporation {the
"Corporation") have a financial and operational relationship which meet the reporting
entity definition criteria of the GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity,
for inclusion of the Corporation as a component unit of the District. Therefore, the
financial activities of the Corporation have been included in the financial statements of
the District.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District and the
Corporation which satisfy GASB Statement No. 14 criteria:

A - Manifestations of Oversight

1.  The Corporation's Board of Directors were appointed by the District's
Board of Education.

2. The Corporation has no employees. The District's Superintendent and
Deputy Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer function as agents of the
Corporation.  Neither individual received additional compensation for
work performed in this capacity.

3. The District exercises significant influence over operations of the

Corporation as it is anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of
all facilities owned by the Corporation.
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1.

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

B

Accounting for Fiscal Matters

1.

All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the
Corporation must have the consent of the District.

Any deficits incurred by the Corporation will be reflected in the lease
payments of the District. Any surpluses of the Carporation revert to the
District at the end of the lease period.

It is anficipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue
source of the Corporation.

The District has assumed a "moral obligation,” and potentially a legal
obligation, for any debt incurred by the Corporation.

Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation

1.

The Corporation was created for the sole purpose of financially assisting
the District.

The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated
under the laws of the State of California and recorded by the Secretary of
State. The Corporation was formed to provide financing assistance to
the District for construction and acquisition of major capital facilities.
Upon completion the District intends to occupy all Corporation facilities.
When the Corporation’s Certificates of Participation have been paid with
State reimbursements and the District's developer fees, title of all
Corporation property will pass to the District for no additional
consideration.

The Corporation's financial activity is presented in the financial
statements as the Building Fund. Certificates of Participation issued by
the Corporation are included in the government-wide financial
statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously
approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Certain of the significant
changes in the Statement include the following:

The financial statements include:

- A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) section providing an
analysis of the District's overall financial position and resuits of operations.

- Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the
District's activities, including infrastructure.

. Change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements
(including notes fo basic financial statements).

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities displays information about
the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Assets
at the fund financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Aclivities are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues,
expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

Program revenues. Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive
directly from the program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or
citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed
from the District's general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses. The District reports all direct expenses by function in
the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
function. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in
the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term liabilities is
considered an indirect expense and is reporied separately on the Statement of
Activities.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
fiabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled. The District's accounts are organized into three broad categories which, in
aggregate, include eight fund types as follows:

A - Governmental Fund Types

1.

General Fund:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and
accounts for all revenues and expenditures of the District not
encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement {0 some
other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures
and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds
are paid from the General Fund.

Special Revenue Funds:

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This classification includes the Charter School, Aduit
Education, Child Development and Deferred Maintenance Funds.

Debt Service Funds:

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal,
interest, and related costs. This classification includes the Bond Interest
and Redemption and Tax Override Funds.

All records relating to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are
maintained by the Sacramento County Auditor-Controller. The revenue
for this fund is raised by school district taxes which are levied, collected,
and administered by County officials. The Education Code stipulates that
the tax rate levied shall be sufficient {o provide monies for the payment of
principal and interest as they become due on outstanding school district
bonds.
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1.

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting (Continued)

A

Governmental Fund Types (Continued)

4.

Capital Projects Funds:

The Capital Projects Funds are used o account for resources used for
the acquisition or construction of capital facilities by the District. This
classification includes the Building, Developer Fees, County School
Facilities, Community Facilities and South Pocket Facilities Funds.

Proprietary Funds

1.

Self-insurance Fund:

The Self-insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for
services rendered on a cost-reimbursement basis within the District. The
Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide workers' compensation, dental
and vision benefits to employees of the District.

Cafeteria Fund:

The Cafeteria Fund is an enterprise fund which accounts for food service
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise with the objective of providing food services on a
continuing basis with costs partially financed or recovered through user
charges.

Fiduciary Funds

1.

Expendable Trust Funds:
Retiree Benefits Trust Fund:

The Retiree Benefits Trust Fund is an Expendable Trust Fund used to
account for assets held by the District as Trustee.

Scholarship Trust Fund:
The Scholarship Trust Fund is an Expendable Trust Fund used to

account for amounts held by the District as Trustee, to be used 1o provide
scholarships to students of the District.
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1.

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting {Continued)

C -  Fiduciary Funds (Continued)

2. Agency Funds:
Student Body Funds:
Student Body Funds are used o account for revenues and expenditures
of the various student body organizations. All cash activity, assets and

liabilities of the various student bodies of the District are accounted for in
Student Body Funds.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

Accrual
Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on

the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. "Available”
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal
and interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

By State law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by July 1. A public
hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education
complied with these requirements.

The District employs budget control by major object code and by individual appropriation
accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code.
The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Education to provide for
unanticipated revenues and expenditures. The originally adopted and final revised
budgets for the Generai Fund are presented in the basic financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Stores Inventory

Inventories in the General and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average cost. Inventory
recorded in the General and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school supplies and
consumable supplies. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the
individual inventory items are transferred from the warehouse to schools and offices.

Cafeteria Food Purchases

Cafeteria purchases include food purchased through the State of California Office of
Surplus Property, for which the District is required to pay only a handling charge. The
State does not require the Cafeteria Fund to record the fair market value of these
commodities. The expenditures for these items would have been greater had the
District paid fair market value for the government surplus food commodities.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported
at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital
outlay that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Capital assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over 4 - 30 years depending on asset types.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences totaling $6,161,541 are recorded as a liability of the District.
The liability is for the earned but unused benefits.

Accumulated Sick Leave

Sick leave benefits are not recognized as labilities of the District. The District's policy is
to record sick leave as a operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since
such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added
to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRS
and CalPERS employees, when the employee retires.

Deferred Revenue

Revenue from Federal, State, and local special projects and programs is recognized
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are
recorded as deferred revenue until earned.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted Net Assets

Restrictions of the ending net assets indicate the portions of net assets not appropriable
for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restrictions
for revolving cash fund, prepaid expenditures and stores inventory reflect the portions of
net assets represented by revolving cash fund, prepaid expenditures and stores
inventory, respectively. These amounis are not available for appropriation and
expenditure at the balance sheet date. The restriction for unspent categorical program
revenues are State programs where the revenue received is restricted for expenditures
only in that particular program. The restriction for special revenues represents the
portion of net assets restricted for special purposes. The restriction for debt service
repayments represents the portion of net assets which the District plans to expend on
debt repayment in the ensuing year. The restriction for capital projects represents the
portion of net assets restricted for capital projects. The restriction for cafeteria
operations represents the portion of net assets restricted for future cafeteria operations.
The restriction for retiree benefits represents the portion of net assets which will be used
for payment of health insurance premiums for current and future retirees. The
restriction for scholarships represents the portion of net assets to be used fo provide
financial assistance to students of the District.

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1.
Taxes are due in two instaliments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured
property taxes are due in one instaliment on or before August 31. The County of
Sacramento bills and collects taxes for the District. Tax revenues are recognized by the
District when received.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded
for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written.
Encumbrances are liguidated when the commitments are paid.

Eliminations and Reclassifications

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to
minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental
activities column,
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management o make
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reporied
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statemenis and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures
during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments at June 30, 2005 consisted of the following:

FPooled Funds:

Cash in County Treasury $ 75,475,576

Cash awaiting deposit $ 1,138,640

Cash in County Treasury - restricted for TRANs $ 26,700,000
Deposits:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 5,273,936

Revolving cash fund 3 727,000
Investments:

Cash with Fiscal Agent $ 25,386,898

Deferred compensation $ 3,968,261

Pooled Funds

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially
all of its cash in the Sacramentc County Treasury. The County pools these funds with
those of school districts in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are
carried at cost which approximates fair value. Interest earned is deposited monthly into
participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the
pool.

Because the District's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund
under the care of a third party and the District's share of the pooled investment fund
does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities owned by the District, no
disclosure of the individual deposits and invesiments or related custodial credit risk
classifications is required.

in accordance with applicable State laws, the Sacramento County Treasurer may invest
in derivative securities. However, at June 30, 2005, the Sacramento County Treasurer
has represenied that the Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or
other investments with similar risk profiles.
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Pooled Funds (Continued)

On November 18, 2004, the District issued $26,700,000 of TRANs, maturing on
November 30, 2005 with interest at 3.5% to provide for anticipated cash flow deficits
from operations and to finance real property acquisitions. The TRANs are a general
obligation of the District and are payable solely from tax revenues and cash receipts
generated by the District during the year ended June 30, 2005. As of June 30, 2005,
funds totaling $26,700,000 held in the General Fund were restricted for repayment of
the TRANs.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Cash balances held in banks and revolving funds are insured up to $100,000 by the
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of June 30, 2005, the carrying
amount of the District's accounts were $6,000,936, and the bank balances were
$7,767,285. Of the bank balances, $770,421 was covered by the FDIC insurance and
$6,996,864 was uninsured. Uninsured balances are fully collateralized by the banks in
accordance with applicable law,

Investments

The Cash with Fiscal Agent represents Debt proceeds that have been set aside for
capital asset expenditures and the repayment of long-term liabilities. These amounts
are held by a third party custodian in the District's name.

The District has established a voluntary deferred compensation plan for its employees.
The agreements provide for periodic payroll deductions from the participating
employees. An amount equal to the reduction in compensation is invested by the
District. The employess have no preferential right, litle, or claim tc the earnings of the
assets of the Plan except as general creditors of the District.

Interest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. At June 30, 2005, the District had no significant interest rate
risk related to cash and investments heid.

Credit Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices
other than the limitations of State law.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. At
June 30, 2005, the District had no concentration of credit risk.
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INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Activity

{Continued)

Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers, except
for the Self-Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the
Self-Insurance Fund and the funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid
balances at year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due

from other funds.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2005 were as follows:

Fund

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
Charter School
Adult Education
Child Development
Deferred Maintenance
Capital Projects Funds:
Building
Developer Fees
Self-Insurance Fund
Cafeteria Fund
Retiree Benefits Trust Fund

Totals

Interfund interfund
Receivables Pavables
$ 11,682,996 § 8,587,423

4 840,665 3,933,343
1,385,488 886,941
113,880 920,311
1,500,000 314
160,583 1,787,700
847,247

587,006 588,037
73,620 3,108,050
157,063 42923

$ 20502283 $ 20502289
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INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds
through which the resources are to be expended.

Interfund transfers for the 2004-2005 fiscal year were as follows:

Transfer from the General Fund o the Charter Schools Fund

for contribution for dependent charters. § 340,884
Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund

to transfer charter school fees. 1,995,987
Transfer from the Adult Education Fund to the General Fund

for indirect support. 765,708
Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund

for indirect support. 888,631
Transfer from the Building Fund to the Deferred Maintenance

Fund to make the deferred maintenance match. 1,500,000
Transfer from the Developer Fees Fund to the Charter Schools

Fund for contribution for dependent charters. 647,247
Transfer from the County School Facilities Fund {o the

Building Fund for construction projects. 30,223,145
Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the General Fund

for indirect support. 1,086,508
Transfer from the Self-Insurance Fund to the General Fund

for indirect support. 587,996

$ 38.036.106
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CAPITAL ASSETS

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2005 is shown
below:

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
July 1, and and June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Governmental Activities
Land $ 16,113,070 § 150,000 $ 16,263,070
Buildings 366,697,056 75,677,944 442 375,000
Site improvements 50,923,565 35,220,831 86,144,396
Equipment 21,704,520 1,781,710 23,486,230
Work-in-process 82.191 234 42677873 § 73.350.761 51518346
Totals, at cost 537.620.445 155 508,358 73,350,761 819.787.042
Less accumulated
depreciation:
Site improvements (21,486,163) {9,379,781) (30,875,944)
Buildings {191,890,284) (3,415,552) (195,305,836)
Equipment (17,188.322) (1,747 462} {18,935 784)
Total accumulated
depreciation (230,574.769) {14.542.795) {245 .117.584)
Capital assets, net $ 307.054.676 ,.§ 140965563 §_ 73350761 $_374.669478
Business-Tvpe Activities
Capital assets, net $ 167,022 3 32938 § (77.482) § 122,478

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction $ 12,234,131
Food services 9,171
All other pupil services 548,143
All other general administration 1,385,195
Piant services 125,347
Community services 240,808

Total depreciation expense $ 14542795

SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS

The District has established a Self-Insurance Fund to account for employee vision
benefits, employee dental benefits and workers' compensation plans. The employee
vision and dental plans are self insured and contract with a third party administrator for
benefits processing. Until July 31, 1998 and beginning July 1, 2001, the workers'
compensation plan provided coverage up to $250,000 and purchased excess insurance
for claims over the retained coverage limit. Between August 1, 1998 and June 30, 2001,
the District purchased insurance for the workers’ compensation coverage.
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SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS (Continued)

The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate
cost of claims that have been repored but not settled and of claims that have been
incurred but not reported. These claims will be paid in future years.

District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims
data. Every three years, the District contracts with an actuary who performs an actuarial
study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates that consider
claim frequency and other economic factors. The liability for workers compensation is
based on an actuarial study dated October 31, 2004,

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2005 2004
Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses,
beginning of year $ 11,675,627 § 10,554,647
Total incurred claims and claim adjusiment
expenses 19,094,361 18,076,771
Total payments (13.694.835) (14.955.791)

Total unpaid ctaims and claim adjustment

expenses aft end of year $ 17075153 $ 11675627

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Special Tax Bonds

Balance Current Current Balance
interest July 1, Year Year June 30,
Series Rate 2004 Proceeds Maturities 20058
1997 C 37%t055% $_5305000 % - 5 430000 $ 4875000

Special Tax Bonds outstanding represent the unpaid portion of a bond issuance by
voters to finance construction of three school facilities. All records relating to bond
redemption and payments of interest are maintained by the Sacramento County
Auditor/Cantroller.
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Special Tax Bonds (Continued)

Scheduled payments on Series 1997 C Special Tax Bond are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 445000 $ 244 427 § 689,427
2007 475,000 221,650 696,650
2008 490,000 197,525 687,525
2009 525,000 171,625 696,625
2010 540,000 143,800 683,800

2011-2015 2.400.000 263,905 2,663,905

$ 4875000 § 1242932 § 6117932

State School Building Aid Loan

Balance Balance
July 1, Interest Repay- June 30,
2004 Charge ment 2005

Sacramento City Unified -

Secondary Schools $ 5004 % 265 % 2,831 % 2,438

The State School Building Aid Loan, with a weighted average interest rate of 4.82%
represents unpaid portions of loans made under provisions of the State law for facilities
construction. Repayments to the State School Building Aid Loan is based on a statutory
formula with both repayments and interest charges being computed by the State
Controller's Office. If repayment of the loan computed under the statutory formula is
insufficient to completely repay the loan within a thirty year period, the remaining
balance is canceled.
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds

Series A;

On February 10, 2000, the District issued 1999 General Obligation Bonds, Series A,
totaling $50,000,000. Bond proceeds are being spent to construct, repair and expand
local schools. Repayment of the bonds will be made from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.0%. A
portion of the Series A bonds were refunded through the issuance of subsequent bonds.
The non-refunded bonds are scheduled to mature as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal interest Total
2006 3 935000 % 46 750 § 981.750

Refunding Bonds, Series 2001:

On October 12, 2001, the District issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serles
2001, lotaling $52,310,000. Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the
Districts 1999 Series A. Repayment of the Bonds is made from special parcel tax
revenues levied in connection with this bond issue. The bonds bear interest at rates
ranging from 2.2% to 5.0% and are scheduled to mature through 2029 as foilows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 3 320,000 $ 2,340,813 $ 2,680,813
2007 1,320,000 2,331,853 3,651,853
2008 1,365,000 2,290,833 3,655,933
2009 1,420,000 2,245,888 3,665,888
2010 1,475,000 2,196,188 3,671,188

2011-2015 8,335,000 10,080,815 18,425,915

2016-2020 10,395,000 8,086,365 18,481,365

2021-2025 13,305,000 5,242,065 18,547,065

2026-2029 13,230.000 1,615,802 14.845 802

$ 51165000 $ 36440822 $_ 87605822
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Series B:

On March 27, 2001, the District issued 1999 General Obligation Bonds, Series B,
totaling $45,000,000. Bond proceeds are being spent to construct, repair and expand
local schools. Repayment of the bonds will be made from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% and
are scheduled to mature through 2030 as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal interest Total
2006 $ G20,000 § 2054688 $ 2,874,688
2007 955,000 2,017,888 2,972,888
2008 995,000 1,977,300 2,972,300
2009 1,040,000 1,832,525 2,972,525
2010 1,090,000 1,885,725 2,975,725
2011-2015 6,230,000 8,641,825 14,871,825
2016-2020 7,900,000 6,963,750 14,863,750
2021-2025 8,090,000 4,780,500 12,870,500
2026-2030 12,870,000 1,893,000 14,863,000
2031-2035 2.000.000 78.500 2.078 500
$ 42090000 $ 32325701 § 74415701
Series C:

On May 7, 2002, the District issued 1999 General Obligation Bonds, Series C, totaling
$45,000,000. Bond proceeds are being spent to construct, repair and expand local
schools. Repayment of the bonds will be made from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% and
are scheduled to mature through 2030 as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 685000 $ 2208865 § 2,893,965
2007 725,000 2,161,015 2,886,015
2008 765,000 2,110,265 2,875,265
2009 800,000 2,056,715 2,856,715
2010 840,000 2,016,715 2,856,715
2011-2015 4,660,000 9,539,981 14,199,881
2016-2020 5,750,000 8,319,440 14,069,440
2021-2025 7,240,000 6,741,690 13,981,690
2026-2030 12,990,000 4,734,802 17,724,802
2031-2035 9.040.000 463,300 9,503,300
$ 43495000 3 40352888 3 83.847.688
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Series D

On August 1, 2004, the District issued 1999 General Obligation Bonds, Series D,
totaling $55,000,000. Bongd proceeds are being spent to construct, repair and expand
local schoois. Repayment of the bonds will be made from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.125%
and are scheduled to mature through 2028 as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2006 $ 635000 $ 2579719 § 3,214,719
2007 715,000 2,560,669 3,275,669
2008 805,000 2,539,219 3,344,219
2008 900,000 2,511,044 3,411,044
2010 1,000,000 2,479,544 3,479,644
2011-2015 6,755,000 11,708,720 18,461,720
2016-2020 10,375,000 10,014,713 20,389,713
2021-2025 15,615,000 6,800,662 22,505,662
2026-2027 17.405.000 2,276,350 19,681,350
$ 54205000 $ 43558640 8 97,763,640
Series A;

On March 1, 2003, the District issued 2002 General Obligation Bonds, Series A, totaling
$80,000,000. Bond proceeds are being spent to construct, repair and expand local
schools. Repayment of the bonds will be made from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% and
are scheduled to mature through 2027 as foliows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 4,000,000 $ 2,726,700 $ 6,728,700
2007 5,250,000 2,606,700 7,856,700
2008 3,000,000 2,396,700 5,396,700
2009 4,300,000 2,276,700 6,576,700
2010 4,750,000 2,093,950 6,843,850

2011-2015 10,185,000 8,943,950 16,138,950

2016-2020 19,980,000 8,011,775 25,891,775

2021-2025 13,440,000 1,677,356 15,117,356

2026-2027 1,280,000 67,250 1.357.250

$ 66205000 $ 28801081 $ 95006081
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Certificates of Participation {COPs)

On February 5, 1998, COPs of $18,400,000 were issued with variable interest rates
ranging from 4.0% to 6.5%, maturing on July 1, 2013. Proceeds were used to defease
the April 1997 COPs and to finance various District roofing and construction projects.

On May 1, 1999, COPs of $16,715,000 were issued with variable interest rates ranging
from 4.0% to 6.2% maturing on July 1, 2024. The proceeds were used to maximize
modernization and site improvements Disfrict-wide in conjunction with the State
Modernization Program.

On April 18, 2001, COPs of $43,580,000 were issued with variable interest rates ranging
from 4.1% to 5.0% maturing on March 1, 2022, for the advance refunding of Series
1999C COPs (with remaining obligation of $29,590,000) and to provide additional capital
for construction projects. With the payment of $30,000,000 to the Escrow Agent to
advance refund and defease the District's 1899C COPs, the 1999C COPs are
considered fo be defeased, and the obligations have been removed from the District's
financial statements.

On July 11, 2002, the District issued $58,000,000 of Variable Rate Demand Certificates
of Participation maturing on March 1, 2031, for the advance refunding of 1998 Series A
COPs (with remaining obligation of $13,750,000) and 1999 Series D COPs (with
remaining obligation of $15,480,000) and to provide additional capital for construction
projects. The interest charges on these Variable Rate Demand COPs is determined
weekly by the Remarketing Agent based on prevailing financial market conditions. With
the payment of $29,230,000 to the Escrow Agent to advance refund and defease the
District's 1998 Series A COPs and the 1999 Series D COPs are considered to be
defeased, and the obligations have been removed from the District's financial
statements.
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Continued)

Scheduled payments for the COPs are as follows:

Year Ending COPs
June 30, Payments

2006 $ 4,091,070
2007 4,190,158
2008 4,187,758
2009 4,288,870
2010 4,248,283
2011-2015 22,347,935
2016-2020 23,845,570
2021-2025 25,744,250
2026-2030 27,945,000
2031 5,927,750
Total payments 126,816,644
Less amount representing interest (32,021.644)
Net present value of minimum payments $ 94,795,000

Capitalized Lease Obligations

The District leases computers, office equipment and buses under long-term lease
purchase agreements. The following is a schedule of fulure lease payments:

Year Ending Lease
June 30, Payments

2006 s 99,185
2007 93,693
2008 63,875
2009 33,505
2010 —_ 21201

Total paymenis 311,558

Less amount representing interest (22.363)

Net minimum lease payments $ 289.196
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2005 is shown
below:

Balance Balance Amounis
July 1, June 30, Due Within
2004 Additions Deductions 2005 One Year
Governmental activities:
Special Tax Bonds & 53050060 3 430,000 § 4875000 $ 445,000
State School Building
Aid Loan 5,004 2.566 2,438 2,438
Generai Obligation Bonds 214,415,000 § 55,000,000 11,320,000 258,005,000 7,495,000
Certificates of Participation 96,905,000 2,110,000 94,795,000 2,145,000
Capitalized lease obligations 382,448 93,253 289,196 82,313
Compensated absences 5814613 3.670.803 3323875 8161 541 6,161 641
Substotal 322827 086 58,670,803 17 279694 364,218,175 16,331,392

Business-type activities:
Capliaiized lease
cbiligations 20,663 5613 15,050 8,123

5 322847720 3 58670803 § 17285307 § 3642332295 § 16337515

Payments on the Special Tax Bonds are made from the South Pocket Facilities Fund.
Payments on the State School Building Aid Loan are made from the Tax Override Fund.
Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund. Payments on the Certificates of Participation are made from the
Building Fund. Payments on the capitalized lease obligations are made from the
General Fund. Payments on compensated absences are made from the fund for which
the related employee worked.

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2005:

Governmental Business-Type Fiduciary

Activities Activities Funds

Restricted for revolving cash $ 725000 % 2,000
Restricted for stores inventory 343,435 83,623
Restricted for prepaid expenses 3,825,852
Restricted for unspent categorical

program revenues 11,234,666
Restricted for special revenues 4,154,573
Restricted for debt service 4,962,758
Restricted for capital proiects 47,797,279
Restricted for cafeteria operations 2,772,703
Restricted for retiree benefits $ 1,674,289
Restricted for schelarships 218,960

Total restricted net assets $ 73043563 5 2858326 5 1883249
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members
of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are
members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).

Plan Description and Provisions

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)
Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS.
The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’
Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of
the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive
Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Poficy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary and the District is
required to confribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of
Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2004-2005 was
9.95% of annuai payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
established by state statute. The District's contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were $1,639,080, $6,033,680 and $6,397,768,
respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year.

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)
Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension
plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor
benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legistatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a
separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be
obtained from the STRS Executive Office, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento,
California 95828.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Plan Description and Provisions (Continued)

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) (Continued)
Funding Poficy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary. The required
employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2004-2005 was 8.25% of annual payroll. The
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The
District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2003, 2004 and
2005 were $15,681,778, $15,480,200 and $15,132,390, respectively, and equal 100% of
the required contributions for each year.

POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the District provides post-
employment health care benefits. The benefils differ for retirees who retired before
December 31, 1974 from those who retired after January 1, 1974, There are 25 pre-
1974 refirees who receive post-employment health care benefits at a flat rate of $121
per month or the amount of their health care premium whichever is less. There are
2,983 post-1974 retirees whose health care benefits are paid 100% by the District.
District teachers qualify for these benefits after attaining age 55 with at least ten years of
consecutive service to the District.  Other District employees qualify for benefits after
attaining age 50 and meeting the requirements outlined in their respective bargaining
agreements. The District obtains an actuarial report every three years to determine the
unfunded future liability for lifetime benefits. The District is currently in the process of
having an actuarial study performed to determine the unfunded lability. During the year
ended June 30, 2005, expenditures of $13,238,295 were recognized for post-
employment health care benefits.

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

Schools Insurance Authority

The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers Authority, Schools
Insurance Authority (SIA), for the operation of a common risk management and
insurance program for property and liability coverage. The following is a summary of
financial information for SIA at June 30, 2004 (the most current information available):
Total assets $ 30,760,008
Total liabilities § 40,592,683
Total net liabilities $ (9,832,675)
Total revenues $ 28,332,334
Total expenses $ 28,204,741
Change in net liabilities $ 127,593
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JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (Continued)

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the
Joint Powers Authority is not component unit of the District for financial reporting
purposes.

CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AUTHORITY (CASA)

Formation of CASA and Pension System - In June 2000, the District entered into a joint
exercise of powers agreement with the Yolo County Office of Education to form the
California Administrative Services Authority (CASA), a California "joint powers authority”,
in order to provide administrative services to its members and to offer an alternative
retirement system to replace CaiPERS and Social Security for certain electing District
classified personnel. In order o participate in the CASA retirement system, 102 District
employees as of June 30, 2003, had taken a leave of absence from the District, became
employed by CASA, and were contracted back to the District to work in their old
positions and functions. Under applicable laws, so long as an public employer offers an
acceptable alternative to, and does not participate in, CalPERS and Social Security,
neither the employer nor its employees are required o coniribute to those systems. By
recapturing the Social Security contributions, CASA expected to be able to afford
enhanced retirement benefits compared to CalPERS, and thus to atfract and retain
highly qualified staff for the District.

Investigation of CASA and Potential District Liability - Review of the District's
participation in CASA and the CASA pension program have been undertaken by
CaiPERS, the State Department of Education, the Sacramento County grand jury, the
Yolo County grand jury, and by the District itself. In September 2003, the District
engaged a national management consulting firm, MGT of America, to audit the CASA
program's operations and fundamental financial assumptions. The District has also
engaged outside legal counsel fo review the legal structure of the program, potential
conflicts of interest, and potential liabilities to outside agencies. In March 2004,
CalPERS concluded that the CASA pension system is not a valid retirement program,
and asked the District to pay approximately $3.2 million in retroactive contributions for
the time District employees spent working for and contributing to CASA. The District
appealed this determination, and an administrative hearing process in now underway.
Effective July 1, 2004, the Board of Education terminated the District's Operating
Agreement under which CASA provided staff services to the District, effectively
returning those employees to District employment. (The Yolo County Office of
Education took similar action in April 2004.)

On December 16, 2003, MGT issued its report regarding the District's potential
exposure as a result of its participation in CASA. In addition to the amount requested by
CalPERS, MGT identified that the District could owe up to $2.5 million to the State
Department of Education to refund unearned "PERS Reduction” income received on
account of District employees transferred to CASA employment, and $3.2 million fo the
Social Security Administration in unpaid employer and employee contributions.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AUTHORITY {CASA) (Continued)

The District cannot definitively estimate the potential cost of any negative outcome in
these various investigations, administrative proceedings and litigation. The District's
liability to pay enhanced retirement benefits to members of CASA will depend on legal
determinations as to the validity of the CASA plan and the benefits promised
thereunder. The District does not believe that the final outcome after all obligations are
satisfied will have a material effect on the District's financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect
to these actions will not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of
the District.

The District has received Federal and State funds for specific purposes that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could resull in
expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is management's opinion that
any required reimbursements of future revenue offsets subsequently determined will not
have a material effect on the District's financial position.

EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
On November 15, 2005, the District issued Tax and Revenue Anficipation Notes
(TRANS) in the amount of $25,000,000 to provide for anticipated cash flow deficits from

operations. The TRANs are to be repaid from tax revenues generated during the 2005-
2006 fiscal year, bearing interest at 1.6% and are due on December 1, 2006.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

June 30, 2005

Charter Aduit Child bDeferred Developer
School Education Development Maintenance Fees
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Subtotal
ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury $ {3,164,808) § 120,885 § 1022408 $ (836,362) $ 8,686,189 $ §,737.314
Cash awaiting deposit 2,835 130,440 1,458 134,733
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Accounts receivable:
Federal government 562,741 1,173,051 2,821,750 4,657,542
State government 410,414 22,859 1,459,468 1,882,741
Local government and other 2,138,267 18,430 285,653 174,354 2,614,704
Due from other funds 4.840 665 1,385 486 113.880 1.500.000 7.840.031
Total assets $ 4788116 $ 2860161 § 6604817 % 663638 § 8860543 $ 23777085
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 436,007 $ 1,751,306 & 1838510 $§ 404974 & 3465 § 4435262
Deferred revenue 30,004 38,146 521,093 589,243
Due to other funds 3933343 886 941 920,311 314 647 247 6 388 156
Total liabilities 4,399,354 2,676,393 3,280,914 405,288 650,712 11,412,661
Fund balances 388,762 183,758 3323703 258 350 8.209 831 12,364 404
Totat liabiiities and fund
balances $ 4788116 $§ 2860151 § 66046817 3 663638 $ 8860543 MB,TYT‘OGS
{Continued)
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ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury
Cash awaiting deposit
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Accounts receivable:
Federal government
State government

L.ocal government and other

Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Lizbilities:
Accounts payable

Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Totat ighilities
Fund baiances

Total iabilities and fund
balances

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS
(Continued)
June 30, 2005

County South Bond
School Community Pocket Interest and Tax
Facilities Facilities Facilities Redemption Override
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 2187990 § 2856080 $ 350816 § 4438169 $ 166,324 $ 16,746,593
134,733
1,846,961 1,848,961
4 857,542
1,892,741
77,956 29,956 4,122 504,425 3,321,163
7,840,031
$ 2265046 $ 2886936 § 2210800 $ 5032594 § 186,324 $ 36339 764
8 44,344 $ 4479608
191,816 781,059
6.388.156
236,160 11,648 821
§ 2265046 § 2886936 § 2210899 4796434 § 166.324 24 690 943
$..2.265946 § 2886036 $ 2210899 § 15032594 3 166324 § 36.339.764

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financiaf statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Charter Adult Chitd Deferred Developer
School Education Development Maintenance Fees
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Subtotal
Revenues:
Revenue iimit sources:

State apportichment 3 7623977 § 10,624,737 $ 18,248,714
Federal sources 2,117,723 2,558,828 § 0,803,083 14,568,634
Other State sources 1,906,244 182,882 5,083,876 $ 2,163,054 10,346,056
Other iocal sources 4,438 662 672,287 2,385,823 (11.683) 3 _5.108489 12,597 578

Totai revenues 16,086,600 14,038,734 18,376,782 2,151,371 5,108,489 55,761,982
Expenditures:
Certificated salaries 7,452,027 6,747,214 5,234,162 16,434,327
Classified salaries 1,884,396 2,597,163 4,726,403 54,682 9,382,644
Employee benefits 3,392,666 3,393,417 4747935 25,087 11,559,115
Books and supplies 717,774 996,613 363,007 417,508 11,249 2,505,151
Confract services and operating

expenditures 1,482,029 1,368,309 677,991 810,476 49,959 4,388,854
Capital outlay 106,459 1,633,035 1,890,363 2,086,669 245,075 5,861,601
Debt service:

Principal retirement

Interest

Totat expenditures 15,136,245 168,734,841 17.639.891 3,394,432 306.283 53211692
Excess (deficlency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures 950.361 (2.696.107) 736.891 (1.243.0681) 4.802.208 2,580,290
Other financing sources {uses):
QOperating transfers in 988,131 1,500,000 2,488,131
Operating transfers out (1,995 987 (765,708) {888.631) {647 247) {4,297 573)
Total other financing sources
{uses) (1.007.856) {765,708} (888.631) 1,500,000 {647 247} (1.809.442)
Net change in fund balances (57,495} (3,461,815} (151,740) 256,939 4,154,959 740,848
Fund baiances, July 1, 2004 448 257 3645573 3475443 1411 4054 872 11.623.558
Fund balances, June 30, 2005 $ 388762 § 183758 $ 3323703 $ 258350 $ 8200831 § 12364404
{Continued)
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SACRAMENTOQ CITY UNIFIED SCHCOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Revenue limit sources:;
State apportionment
Federa! sources
Other State sources
Other local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Confract services and operating

expenditures
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under}
expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources
{uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund batances, July 1, 2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS
{Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

County South Bond
School Community Pocket Interest and Tax
Facilities Facilities Facitities Redamption Override
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 18,248,714
14,569,634
$ 32,411,135 42,757,191
77956 $ . B13136 $ 9068746 $ 14328238 28.723.654
32,489 091 813.136 906,746 14,328 238 104,299 193
18,434,327
9,362,644
11,559,115
2,505,151
4,388,854
5,661,501
430,600 14,320,000 § 2,568 11,752,566
265,543 11.706.230 265 11.972.038
695,543 23.026.230 2,831 75,936,206
32.488 091 813,136 211,203 {8.897.992) {2.831) __ 27382897
2,488,131
(30,223.145) {34.520.718)
30,223.145) (32,032,587}
2,265,946 813,136 211,203 (8.657,902) (2,831} (4,669,690}
2.073.800 1,899,696 13,494 4268 169,155 29,360,633

$ 2265046 § 2886936 $_ 2210899

$ 4796434 $

166324 3 24690943

The accampanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury
Cash on hand and in banks
Accounis receivable:

L.ocal government and other
Due from other funds
Stiores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

Fund batances
Restricted

Total liabilities and fund
balances

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2005

Agency
Expendable Trust Funds Fund
Retiree Scholar- Student
Benefits ship Trust Body
Trust Trust Total Funds Total
$(2,092,075) $(2,092,075) $(2,092,075)
$ 218,960 218,960 § 1,848,245 2,067,205
3,653,371 3,653,371 59,598 3,712,969
157,063 157,063 157,063
74,046 74,046
12.877 12,877
$ 1718359 §$ 218960 §$ 1937319 § 109947686 3§ 3,932085
$ 1,147 b 1,147 § 120,825 $§ 122,072
42,923 42,923 42,923
1.873.841 1,873,841
44,070 44,070 1,894,766 2,038,836
1674289 $ 218,960 1.893.249 1.893.249
$ 1718359 § 218960 $.1937319 $.1.994766 $ 3932085

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds
Sacramento High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 8476 § 1 8 8,477
Accounts receivable:
Local governments and other
Inventory
Capital assets
Total assels $ §476 §$ 1§ 8477 § -
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups & 8476 §_ . 1§ 8,477
Tota! Habilities 5 8476 % 1 3 8477 § -
C.K, McClatchy High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 420,679 $ 485,760 % 461,709 $ 444 730

Accounts receivable:
Local governments and other
Inventory 10,241 884 9.357

Capital assets

Total assets $§ 430920 $ 485760 $ 462,593
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie 3 3,508 § 4,359 $ 3,508 % 4,359
Due to student groups 427,412 481,401 459.085 449.728
Total liabiiities $ 430920 § 485760 § 462,593 454 087

{Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL. DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

ALEL AGENCY FUNDS
{Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds (Continued)
Hiram Johnson High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks § 139,220 % 226,275 § 208,544 § 156,951
Accounts receivable;
Local governments and other
nventory 5,360 1,860 3,500
Capital assets 24 357 14,787 8570
Total assets 3 168937 § 226275 § 225191 $ 170,021
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,968 §$ 1,434 § 1,380 % 5,022
Due to student groups 163,969 224 841 223811 164,999
Total liabitities $ 168937 § 226275 § 225191 § 170,021
Luther Burbank High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 138,463 % 726,190 % 724719 § 139,934
Accounts receivable:
L.ocal governments and cther 7,990 7,980
inventory 1,941 137 1,804
Capital assets
Total assets 148394 § 726190 $ 732846 $ 141738
Liabitities:
Accounts payable $ 4,700 % 37605 % 11,026 % 31,279
Due fo student groups 143,694 888 585 721820 110,459
Total Habilities $ 148394 % 726190 § 732846 § 141,738

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABRLITIES

AlLL AGENCY FUNDS
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds {Continued)
John F. Kennedy High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks 3 347685 $ 568,248 § 533,992 $ 381,941
Accounts receivable;
Local governments and other
Inventory
Capital assets
Total assets $ 347685 § 668248 § 533902 § 381941
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 10,061 $ 36,069 § 37273 § 8,857
Due to student groups 337,624 532,179 496,719 373.084
Total liabilities 3 347685 3 568248 % 533992 § 381,941
Rosemont High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 6,746 % 255693 § 216,051 § 46,388
Accounts receivable:
Local governments and other
Inventory
Capital assets
Total assets 3 6746 § 255603 $ 216051 § 48,388
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Due to student groups 3 6746 $ 255603 § 216051 § 46,388
Total liabilities 3 8746 § 255693 $ 218051 % 46,388
{Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

{Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds (Continued)
Hiram Johnson West Campus
Assets!
Cash on hand and in hanks $ 110,856 $ 309,078 $ 315,907 104,027
Accounts receivable:

Local governments and other
Inventory
Capital assets

Total assets 3 110,856 3§ 309078 § 315,907 104,027
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups $ 110856 §  309.078 § 315907 104,027
Total liabilities $ 110856 § 309078 $ 315,907 104,027
Sacramento Skills Business Center
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks % 71,165 71,165
Accounts receivable:

Local governments and other 59,598 59,598
fnventory 50,569 50,569
Capital assets

Total assets $ 181332 § - $ - 181,332
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 71,408 71,408
Due to student groups 109,924 109,924
Total tiabilities 3 181332 § - $ - 181,332
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL. DISTRICT

COMEINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds {Continued)
Fremont School for Adulis
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 11,675 § 14,038 § 10,779 14,934
Accounts receivable:
Locat governments and other
inventory 8,816 8,816
Capftal assets
Total assets 3 11675 § 22854 % 10,779 23750
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups 3 11,675 % 22854 % 10,779 23.750
Total liabitities 3 11,675 3 22854 % 10,779 23,750
A Warren McClaskey Adult Center
Assetls:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 31688 § 25797 % 27,709 29,776
Accounis receivable:
Local governments and other
inventory
Capital assets 3.307 3.307
Totat assets $ 34995 § 25797 § 27,709 33,083
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups 3 34995 § 25797 % 27.709 33,083
Total liabilities $ 34995 § 25797 % 27,709 33,083

{Continued)
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SACRAMENTC CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
{Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds (Continued)
Old Marshai
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks ] 9,213 5 5,480 % 1,766 § 12,927
Accounts receivable:
Local governments and other
inventory
Capital assets
Total assets 3 9213 § 5480 § 1765 $ 12,927
Liabitities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups 9213 5.480 1,766 12.927
Total liabilities % 9213 § 5480 § 1,766 § 12,927
Elementary and Middle Schools
Asseis:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 454,057 $§ 1,435,762 § 1444347 § 445,472
Accounts receivable:
L.ocal governments and other
inventory
Capital assets
Total assets $ 454057 § 1435762 § 1444347 S 445472
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups § 454057 § 1435762 § 1444347 $ 445472
Total liabilities $ 454057 $ 1435762 $ 1444347 $ 445472

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions  _Deductions 2005
Student Body Funds {Continued)
Total Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 1,749,923 $ 4,052,322 § 3,854000 § 1,848,245
Accounts receivable:

Local governments and other 67,588 7,990 59,598
inverdory 68,111 8,816 2,881 74,046
Capital assets 27.664 14,787 12,877

Total assets . . 1913286 $ 4061138 § 3970658 $ 1994766
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 94,645 § 79,467 § 53,187 §% 120,925
Due to student groups 1,818,841 3,981,671 3926471 1,873.841
Total liabilities $ 1913286 $ 4061138 § 3979658 § 1994766

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2005
Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of California,
was established on July 7, 1936. The territory covered by the District does not include certain
areas of the City of Sacramento, but does include some contiguous territory located outside city

boundaries, but within Sacramento County boundaries.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires

Roy Grimes President November 2006
Manny Hernandez Vice President November 2008
Dawn McCoy Second Vice President November 2006
Jerry Houseman Member November 2006
Richard Jennings Il Member November 2008
Miguel Navarrette Member November 2008
Karen Young Member November 2008
Mandy Carrillo Student Member June 2006

ADMINISTRATION

M. Magdalena Carrillo Mejia, Ph.D.
Superintendent

Thomas . Barentson
Deputy Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer

Arturo Flores
Associate Superintendent

Evan Lum
Agsociate Superintendent

Carol Mignone
Associate Superintendent

Susan Miller
Associate Superintendent

Joan Polster
Associate Superintendent

Melissa Brown
Assistant Superintendent

William T. West
Assistant Superintendent
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
Elementary:
Kindergarten 3,260 3,270
First through Third 10,308 10,285
Fourth through Eighth 17,905 17,842
Home and Hospital 25 27
Special Education 1,521 1,508
Community Day School 25 30
Charter School 4,438 4.374
Total Elementary 37,482 37.342
Secondary:
Regular Classes 10,093 9,907
Special Education 746 731
Compulsory Continuation Education 220 214
Home and Hospital 20 18
Community Day School 51 57
Total Secondary 11,130 10.927
Classes for Adults:
Concurrently Enroiled 89 114
Classes for Aduits 3.435 5.234
Total for Adults 3.524 5348
52,136 53,617

Hours of Attendance

Summer School;

Elementary 819,143 1,014,287
Secondary 597.622 822977
1,418,765 1,837,274

See accompanying notes {o
supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

1986-87 Number Number

Minutes 1982-83 2004-05 of Days of Days

Require- Actual Actual Traditional Year-Round

Grade Level ment Minutes Minutes Calendar Calendar Status

Kindergarten 36,000 35,094 36,000 180 180 in Compliance
Grades 110 3 50,400 44,137 50,600 180 180 in Compliance
Grades 4106 54,000 52,875 55,720 180 180 in Compliance
Grades 7 and 8 54,000 58,163 58,164 180 180 In Compliance
Grades 9 10 12 64,800 60,549 64,860 180 180 In Comptiance

See accompanying notes to
supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Pass-
Through
Federal Entity Federal
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures
Speciat Education Cluster:
84.027 Special Ed IDEA: Basic and Local Assistance
Entittement, Part B, Sec 611 (Formerly 94-142) 13379 $ 8401764
84.173 Special Education Preschool Grants 13430 294,817
84.027A Special Ed IDEA: Preschoot Local Entitlement,
Part B, Sec 611 (Age 3-5) 13682 371,297
84.027A Special Ed: Idea Local Staff Development Grants,
Part B, Sec 611 13613 17,642
84.027A Special Ed: IDEA Interpreter Certification, Part B,
Sec 611 14466 10,592
84.173A Special Ed: IDEA Preschool Staff Development,
Part B, Sec 619 13431 1,617
84.181 Special Education Grants for Infants and Families
with Disabilities 23761 7,854
84.027 Special £Ed - Alternative Dispute Resolution, Part B,
Sec 611 13007 6173
Subtotal Special Education Cluster 9,111,756
Title 1 Cluster:
84.010 Comprehensive Schoo! Reform Demonstration Program 14039 483,340
84.013 NCLB: Title' | Local Delinguent Programs, Part D 13798 21,144
84.010 NCLB: Title | Achieving Schools Award 14429 69,985
84.010 NCLB: Title t Local Improvement Plan, Regional
School Support and Improvement Centers 14330 114,600
84.216 NCLB: Title | Capital Expenses for Private Schools 03953 56,940
84.010 NCLB: Titie | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 14329 31,784,529
84.010 NCLB: Title |, Part A, School Improvement, School
Assistance and Intervention Teams {SAIT) 14417 161,658
84.010A NCLB: Title |, Part A, School Improvement SAIT
Corrective Action Plans 14579 475,906
Subtotal Title | Cluster 33.158.002
84.002 Adult Education State Grant Program 13973 1,267,250
84.324 Special Education Research and Innovation to Improve
Services and Results for Children with Disabilities 14577 164,409
84.000 Bilingual Education - Discretionary Grants 10008 301,840
93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living * 78,932
84.282 Charter Schools 13150 735,686
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant 13942 12,992
93.586 Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the
Child Care and Development Fund 13609 309,664

{Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

{Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Pass-
Through
Federal Entity Federal
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures
84.196 Education for Hometless Children and Youth 14332 $ 133,441
84.318 Education Technology Formula Grants / FE 14334 533,410
84.365 Title I Limited English Proficiency 14346 1,336,328
84.293 Foreign Language Assistance * 175,383
84.215 Fund for the iImprovement of Education 030863 712,229
93.600 Head Start 10016 9,670,428
84.367 NCLB: Title If, Part A, Improving Teacher Quality
Local Grants 14341 4,055,792
84.060 Indizn Education Grants to Local Educational Agencies 10011 169,746
84.364 Literacy Through School Libraries * 3,024
93.778 Medical assistance Program 10013 2,818,225
10.555 National Schoo! Lunch Program 13396 13,197,715
84357 NCLB: Titte |, Part B, Reading First Program - LEA
Subgrant 14328 2,856,007
93.576 Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 13981 115,546
= ROTC * 289,639
84.186 NCLB: Title IV, Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities, Formula Grants 14347 831,205
84.298 State Grants for Innovative Programs 14354 227,014
84.287 NCLB: Title IV 21st Century Community Centers
Learning Program 14349 396,720
84.048 Vocational Education Basic Grants to States 13920 863,491
84.184L Safe and Drug Free Schoois / Community 14348 2,644,129
84.396 Fiexibility and Accountability * 86,915
84.346 One Stop * 713,553
84.215 Teaching American History Grant * 272,322
Totals $ 87241094

* District is unable to provide PCA numbers.
* ROTC grants are received directly from specific military commands, which will not provide CFDA
numbers to the District.

See accompanying notes o
supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Self-Insurance

Fund
June 30, 2005 Unaudited Actual Financial Report Fund Defigit $ (1,680,979)
Adjustments:
Record Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expense (813.000)
June 30, 2005 Audited Financial Statement Fund Deficit 3 (2.493.979)

There were no audit adjustments proposed to any other funds of the District.

See accompanying notes to
supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

{Budget)
20086 2005 2004 2003

General Fund
Revenues and other

financing sources $ 370276238 §$ 388803438 $ 376800530 $ 387277605
Expenditures 330,185,547 386,285,875 384,668,929 382,646,342
Other uses and transfers out 340,884
Total outgo 339,185,547 386,626,759 384,668,929 382,646,342
Change in fund balance $ 31000691 $ 2176679 3 (7.868399) §  4.631,263
Ending fund balance $ 53238367 § 22147676 § 19970997 § 27839308
Availabie reserves $ 6789000 $ 5378066 3 5710568 § 6500000
Designated for economic

uncertainties $ 6780000 § 5378066 $ 5710568 § 6,500,000
Undesignated fund balance $ - $ - $ - 5 -
Available reserves as

percentages of total

outgo 2.0% 1.4% 1.5% 1.7%
All Funds
Totat long-term liabilities $ 347,886.784 $ 364233225 $ 322847729 $ 331397938
Average daily attendance

at P-2, exciuding Adult

and Charter Schoal 43752 44 174 45754 48074

The General Fund fund balance has decreased by $1,060,457 over the past three years. The District has
incurred operating surpluses in two of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an operating surplus
during the 2005-2006 fiscal year. The fiscal year 2005-2006 budget projects an increase of $31,080,691.
The 2005-2006 General Fund budget as originally adopted does not include the expenditures related to
$29,722,019 of NCLE revenues, When these expenditures are budgeted, the change in fund balance will
be $1,368,672. For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 2% of total
General Fund expenditures, fransfers out, and other uses. For the years ending June 30, 2004 and 2005
the State has allowed a District of this size to reduce their available reserves to 1.0%.

Total long-term liabifities have increased by $32,835,287 over the past two years, due primarily to the
issuance of General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Participation {(Note 6 fo the financial statements).

Average daily attendance has decreased by 4,900 over the past two years. The District anticipates a
decrease of 422 ADA for the 2005-2006 fiscal year.

See accompanying notes to
supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Charter Schools Chartered by District

Included in District
Financial Statements, or
Separate Report

America's Choice

Bowling Green Elementary
Capitcl Heights Academy
Genesis

Keith B. Kenny Elementary

KIPP Sol Aureus Coliege Preparatory
Language Academy of Sacramento

New Technology High Schoo}
Sacramento Charter High School
St. HOPE Public Schoot 7

The MET Sacramento

Visual & Performing Arts Charter

See accompanying notes to
suppiementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending
classes of the District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal
standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of State funds are
made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the
attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as
provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule
presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District,
and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code
Sections 46201 through 46206.

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards

OMB Circular A-133 requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all
Federally funded programs. This schedule was prepared to comply with A-133
requirements.

Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial
Statemenis

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited
Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule provides information on the District's financial condition aver the
past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2005-2006 fiscal year, as
required by the State Controlier's Office.

Schedule of Charter Schools

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools.

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of
districts which adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code
Sections 22714 and 44929, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the District did not
adopt this program.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

We have audited the compliance of Sacramento City Unified School District with the
types of compliance requirements described in the State of California's Standards and
Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies (the “Audit Guide") to the
State laws and regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2005. Compliance with the
requirements of State laws and regulations is the responsibility of Sacramento City Unified
School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Sacramento City
Unified School District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the State of California's Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local
Educational Agencies. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the State laws and regulations listed
below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sacramento City
Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
of Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those reguirements.

Audit Guide Procedures

Description Procedures Performed
Attendance Reporting 8 Yes
Kindergarten Continuance 3 Yes
independent Study 22 Yes
Continuation Education 10 Yes
Adult Education 9 Yes
Regional Cecupational Center/Programs 6 Not Applicable
Instructional Time and Staff Development Reform Program 7 Yes
Instructional Time:

Schoot Districts 4 Yes

County Offices of Education 3 Not Applicable
Community Day Schools 9 No (See Below)
Class Size Reduction Program:

General reguirements 7 Yes

Option one classes 3 Yes

Option two classes 4 Not Applicable

Districts with onily one school serving K-3 4 Not Applicable

Instructionat Materials:

General requirements 12 Yeas

Grades K-8 1 Yes

Grades 9-12 1 Yes
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers 1 Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Program 4 Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation 1 Yes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

{Continued)
Audit Guide Procedures

Description Procedures Performed
Schoot Construction Funds:

School District Bonds 3 Yes

State School Facilities Funds 1 Yes
Alternative Pension Plans 2 Yes
Proposition 20 Lottery Funds 2 Yes
State Lottery Funds 2 Yes
California School Age Families Education Program 3 Yes
School Accountability Report Card 3 No (5ee Below)

We did not perform testing for the Community Day Schools because the ADA reported
was below the level required for testing.

The 2004-2005 School Accountability Report Cards specified by Education Code
Section 33126 are not required to be completed, nor were they completed, prior o the
completion of our audit procedures for the year ended June 30, 2005. Accordingly, we could
not perform the portions of audit steps (a), (b} and (c) of Section 18837 of the 2004-2005 Audit
Guide relating to the comparison of tested data from the 2004-2005 fiscal year to the 2004-
2005 School Accountability Report Cards.

In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied with the State laws and
regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2005, except as described in the
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs section of this report. Further, based on our
examination, for items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate that Sacramento
City Unified School District had not complied with the State laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education,
management, the State Controller's Office, the California Department of Education and the

California Department of Finance, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its

distribution is not limited.
?&V\&L - Sﬂ\Aﬂu L.L-P

Sacramento, California
November 11, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

We have audited the financial statements of Sacramento City Unified School District as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 11, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Sacramento City Unified School
District's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal
control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components dees not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sacramento City Unified
School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education,
management, the California Department of Education, the California State Controller's Office
and Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of
public record and its distribution is not limited.

/%v%’ww

Sacramento, California
November 11, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified Schoaol District
Sacramento, California

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Sacramento City Unified School District with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major Federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2005. Sacramento City Unified School District's major
Federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to each of its major Federal programs is
the responsibility of Sacramento City Unified School District's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance based on our
audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain
reasonabie assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major Federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sacramento City
Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
on Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in afl material respects,
with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major Federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Sacramento City Unified School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Sacramento City Unified School District’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
Federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
(Continued)

Internal Control Over Compliance (Continued)

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose
all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements that would be
material in relation to a major Federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education,
management, the California Department of Education, the California State Controller's Office

and Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of

public record and its distribution is not limited.
N

Sacramento, California
November 11, 2005
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
tnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Reportable condition(s) identified not considerad
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? Yes X No
FEDERAL AWARDS
internal contral over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)? Yes X__ No

identification of major programs:

CFDA Number{(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.027, 84.173 Special Education Cluster
10.588 National School Lunch Program
93.778 Medical Assistance Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $ 2,639,875
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X ___ Yes No
STATE AWARDS
Internal controf over State programs:
Material weakness(es} identified? Yes X __No
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
State programs: Qualified
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTING (30000}
Criteria

California Department of Education's "Accounting Procedures for Student Organizations
Handbook™.

Conditions

The student body accounts at three of the six sites visited for testing had the following
conditions:

. The ASB Secretary does not issue or maintain a log of receipt books issued to
student clubs.

. Receipt books are not maintained and issued to each student club.

. Pre-numbered receipts are not given to individuals to acknowledge receipt of
cash.
Cash turned in to the Controller is not counted in dual custody.
Cash is not recorded promptly as it is only recorded when deposits are made,
which can be weekly or monthly.
Expenditures are supported by an invoice, but there is no indication of receiving
the goods or services.
Total cash receipts are not supported by detail schedules defining number of
iterns sold or receipted.
Total deposit amounts are not supported by deposit receipts.

Effect

There exists the risk of possible misappropriation of student body funds.

Cause

The site personnel have not followed the District established internal control procedures.
Fiscal lmpact

Not determinable.

Recommendation

We recommend the District stress the importance of effective controls over student body
accounts and that interim reviews are performed fo ensure compliance with the
requirements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
(Continued)

STUDENT BODY ACCQUNTING (30000) (Continued)

Corrective Action Pian

The District has a student body procedures manual that it provides to all school sites
along with continuous student body fraining. The District will perform interim reviews to
ensure compliance with the requirements. Site administration has been notified of the
findings and will be provided with the corrective action plan.  Site administration is
committed to, and will be accountable for, implementing the necessary changes. District
administration will monitor the process for resolution and corrective action
implementation.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION lIf - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDS (40000)
Criteria

Expenditures from the county school facilities fund shall be made only for qualifying
school facilities expenditures as provided in subdivision (c) of Education Code Section
17070.43 and additionally set forth in Education Code Section 17072.35, or in Education
Code Section 17074.25 as further defined in subdivision (f) of Education Code Section
17070.15; or for other high priority capital outlay purposes in accordance with the
provisions of subdivision (c) of Education Code Section 17070.63.

Condition

One expenditure from the school facilities fund was made for instructional materials
which are not allowable expenditures from the County School Facilities Fund. After our
initial review, the District Internal Audit Department performed additional testing, which

was validated by our audit procedures, that determined that a total of $655,118 of
expenditures were made for these types of expenditures.

Effect

There were $655,118 of charges that should not have been charged to the County
School Facilities Fund. Subsequent to our audit procedures and prior to June 30, 2005
the District reclassified the expenditures to a more appropriate resource code.

Cause

Certain types of expenditures are not appropriately charged to the County School
Facilities Fund.

Fiscal Impact

The total fiscal impact is $655,118 of expenditures being moved from the County School
Facilities Fund to a more appropriate resource.

Recommendation

We recommend that the District review policies and procedures to ensure that
expenditures are categorized to the most appropriate funding source.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)
Year Ended June 36, 2005

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDS (40000} (Continued)

Corrective Action Plan

The District transferred expenditures in the amount of $655,118 to a more appropriate
funding source prior to closing the books for fiscal year 2004-2005. The expenditure
guideiines in Education Code Section 17072.35 have been reviewed. The requisition
review process will incorporate this information to approve and ensure that expenditures
are charged to the appropriate funding sources.

ATTENDANCE - CONTINUATION EDUCATION (10000)

Criteria

Aftendance Accounting and Reporting in California Public Schools, Title 5, CCR,
Sections 401 and 421 (b) and Education Code Section 44809 - Each LEA must develop

and maintain accurate and adequate records to support the attendance reported to the
State.

Condition

At the Continuation Education site there were 13 instances where students were
recorded as present in the computerized attendance system, but the attendance records
indicated they were actually absent and there were 11 instances where the students
were marked as absent in the computerize attendance system and the attendance
records indicated the student was actually present.

Effect

The extrapolated effect of these errors is an overstatement of 0.86 ADA.

Cause

The computerized atiendance system was not reconciled to the supporting attendance
records.

Fiscal Impact

The total fiscal impact is an extrapolated overstatement of approximately $4,245 in
apportionment funding.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2005

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

ATTENDANCE - CONTINUATION EDUCATION (10000) (Continued)

Recommendation

We recommend that the District implement policies and procedures that require the
computerized attendance system be reconciled to the supporting attendance
documentation. Additionally, the District should revise and resubmit the Period Two and
Annual Reports of Attendance reflecting the removal of the disallowed ADA.

Corrective Action Plan

The District will review existing procedures and, if necessary, revise them to ensure that
all necessary reconciliations are performed. Site administration will be notified of the
finding and provided with the corrective action plan. Disfrict administration will monitor
the process for resolution and corrective action implementation. The District will also
revise and resubmit the Period Two and Annual Reports of Attendance reflecting the
removal of 0.86 ADA.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Finding/Recommendation

District Explanation

2004-1

The auditors were unable to verify that
check pre-registers were reviewed prior to
processing. We recommended that pre-
registers be revised and evidence of that
review be maintained by the District.

2004-2

Areas for enhancing internat controls over
Associated Student Body were noted
during the audit. We recommended that
the District review internal controls with
the individual sites to ensure compliance
with applicable internal control standards.

2004-3

The District did not adopt procedures for
hiring highly qualified teachers and para-
professionais hired after July 1, 2002. We
recommended that the District establish
procedures to ensure that all individuals
hired for the Title I program be "highly
qualified.”

2004-4

At Wil C. Wood Middie School, one
student was claimed for apportionment
attendance when the site had
documentation that the student was
actually absent. We recommended that
the District review procedures for
reconciling attendance data and that the
Period Two and Annual Reporis of
Attendance be revised and re-submitted.

2004-5

For continuation education we found that
instructor's records for attendance did not
agree fo the Hourly Attendance Report.
We recommended that the District revise
angd re-submit the Period Two Report of
Attendance.

Current Status If Not Implemented

Impiemented.

Partially implemented, See current year finding
#1.

Implemented.

Implemented.

Partially implemented. See current year finding
#3.
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